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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT J El VED
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS Ul 7

EASTERN DIVISION s, 4 2005
Eg A G
) St &s [()/IZM‘WI JUDGZ'
SWC;-
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) Coupy
)
Plaintiff, ) CivilNo. 05 C 4064
)
V. ) Judge Guzman
)
COLUMBIA HOUSE COMPANY, )
)
Defendant. )
)

STIPULATED JUDGMENT AND ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION

Plaintiff, the United States of America, acting upon notification and authorization to the
Attorney General by the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or the “Commission”), has
commenced this action by filing the complaint herein, and Defendant has been served with the
summons and the complaint. The parties, represented by the attorneys whose names appear
hereafter, have agreed to settlement of this action without adjudication of any issue of fact or law,
and without Defendant admitting liability for any of the violations alleged in the complaint.

THEREFORE, on the joint motion of the parties, it is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED
AND DECREED as follows:

FINDINGS

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties pursuant to
28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 56(2;).

2. Venue in the Northern District of Illinois is proper.

3. The activities of Defendant are in or affecting commerce, as defined in Section 4
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of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 44.

4. The complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against Defendant
under Sections 5(a), 5(m)(1)(A), and 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”),
15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), and 53(b).

5. Defendant has entered into this Stipulated Judgment and Order for Permanent
Injunction (“Order”) freely and without coercion. Defendant further acknowledges that it has

read the provisions of this Order and is prepared to abide by them.

6. Defendant hereby waives all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge or contest the
validity of this Order.
7. Defendant has agreed that this Order does not entitle Defendant to seek or to

obtain attorneys’ fees as a prevailing party under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C.
§ 2412, and Defendant further waives any rights to attorneys’ fees that may arise under said
provision of law.

8. By entering into this stipulation, Defendant does not admit any of the allegations
set forth in the complaint, other than the jurisdictional facts. Defendant expressly denies all other
allegations in the complaint.

9. Entry of this Order is in the public interest.

DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions shall apply:

1. “Asset” means any legal or equitable interest in, or right or claim to, any real and
personal property, including without limitation, chattels, goods, instruments, equipment, fixtures,

general intangibles, leaseholds, mail or other deliveries, inventory, checks, notes, accounts,
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credits, contracts, receivables, shares of stock, and all cash, wherever located.

2. “Defendant” means “The Columbia House Company,” a New York general
partnership.
3. “Telemarketing Sales Rule” or “Rule” means the FTC Rule entitled

“Telemarketing Sales Rule,” 16 C.F.R. § 310, attached hereto as Appendix A or as may hereafter
be amended.

4. “Customer” means any person who is or may be required to pay for goods or
services offered through telemarketing.

5. “Telemarketing” means a plan, program, or campaign which is conducted to
induce the purchase of goods or services or a charitable contribution, by use of one or more
telephones and which involves more than one interstate telephone call. The term does not
include the solicitation of sales through the mailing of a catalog which: contains a written
description or illustration of the goods or services offered for sale; includes the business address
of the seller; includes multiple pages of written material or illustrations; and has been issued not
less frequently than once a year, when the person making the solicitation does not solicit
customers by telephone but only receives calls initiated by customers in response to the catalog
and during those calls takes orders only without further solicitation. For purposes of the previous
sentence, the term “further solicitation” does not include providing the customer with
information about, or attempting to sell, any other item included in the same catalog which
prompted the customer’s call or in a substantially similar catalog.

6. “Seller” means any person who, in connection with a telemarketing transaction,

provides, offers to provide, or arranges for others to provide goods or services to the customer in

Page 3 of 11



exchange for consideration, whether or not such person is under the jurisdiction of the Federal
Trade Commission.

7. “Telemarketer” means any person who, in connection with telemarketing, initiates
or receives telephone calls to or from a customer or donor.

8. “Established business relationship” means a relationship between the seller and a
person based on: (a) the person’s purchase, rental, or lease of the seller’s goods or services or a
financial transaction between the person and seller, within the eighteen months immediately
preceding the date of the telemarketing call; or (b) the person’s inquiry or application regarding a
product or service offered by the seller, within the three months immediately preceding the date
of a telemarketing call.

9. “Representatives” means Defendant’s successors, assigns, officers, agents,
directors, servants, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation with them
who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise.

10.  “Person” means any individual, group, unincorporated association, limited or
general partnership, corporation, or other business entity.

11.  “Outbound telephone call” means a telephone call initiated by a telemarketer to
induce the purchase of goods or services or to solicit a charitable contribution.

12.  “National Do Not Call Registry” means the National Do Not Call Registry, which
is the ‘do-not-call’ registry maintained by the Federal Trade Commission pursuant to 16 C.F.R.

§ 310.4(b)(1)(111)(B).
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ORDER

I. PROHIBITION AGAINST ABUSIVE TELEMARKETING PRACTICES

IT IS ORDERED that, in connection with telemarketing, Defendant and its
Representatives are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from engaging in, or causing
other persons to engage in, violations of the Telemarketing Sales Rule, including but not limited
to:

A. Initiating any outbound telephone call to a person when that person has previously
stated that he or she does not wish to receive an outbound telephone call made by or on behalf of
the seller whose goods or services are being offered; or

B. Initiating any outbound telephone call to a person’s telephone number on the
National Do Not Call Registry of persons who do not wish to receive outbound telephone calls to
induce the purchase of goods or services unless the seller proves:

1. The seller has obtained the express agreement, in writing, of such person
to place calls to that person. Such written agreement shall clearly evidence such
person’s authorization that calls made by or on behalf of a specific party may be
placed to that person, and shall include the telephone number to which the calls
may be placed and the signature of that person; or

2. The seller has an established business relationship with such person and
that person has not previously stated that he or she does not wish to receive
outbound telephone calls made by or on behalf of the seller.

Provided, however, that if the Commission promulgates rules that modify or supersede

the Telemarketing Sales Rule, in whole or part, Defendant shall comply fully and completely
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with all »applicable requirements thereof, on and after the effective date of any such rules.
II. CIVIL PENALTY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that judgment in the amount of Three Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($300,000.00) is hereby entered against Defendant, as a civil penalty, pursuant to Section
S5(m)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(A).

A. Prior to or concurrently with its execution of this Order, Defendant shall turn over
the full amount of the civil penalty to its attorney, who shall hold the entire sum for no purpose
other than payment to the Treasurer of the United States after entry of this Order by the Court.
Within five (5) days of receipt of notice of the entry of this Order, Defendant’s attorney shall
transfer the civil penalty payment in the form of a wire transfer or certified or cashier’s check
made payable to the Treasurer of the United States. The check or written confirmation of the
wire transfer shall be delivered to the Director, Office of Consumer Litigation, U.S. Department
of Justice Civii Division, P.O. Box 386, Washington, D.C. 20044. The cover letter
accompanying the check shall include the title of this litigation and a reference to DJ# 102-3235.

B. In the event of default on the payment required to be made by this Section, the
entire unpaid civil penalty, together with interest computed under 28 U.S.C. § 1961 -- accrued
from the date of default until the date of payment -- shall be immediately due and payable.
Defendant agrees that, in such event, the facts as alleged in the complaint filed in this action shall
be taken as true in any subsequent litigation filed by Plaintiff or the Commission to enforce their
rights pursuant to this Order, including but not limited to a nondischargeability complaint in any
subsequent bankruptcy proceeding.

C. Defendant shall cooperate fully with Plaintiff and the Commission and their
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agents in all attempts to collect the amount due pursuant to this Section if Defendant fails to pay
fully the amount due at the time specified herein. In such an event, Defendant agrees to provide
Plaintiff and the Commission with its federal and state tax returns for the preceding two years,
and to complete new standard-form financial disclosure forms fully and accurately within ten
(10) business days of receiving a request from Plaintiff or the Commission to do so. Defendant
further authorizes Plaintiff and the Commission to verify all information provided on their
financial disclosure forms with all appropriate third parties, including, but not limited to,
financial institutions.

D. In accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701, Defendant is hereby required, unless it has
done so already, to furnish to Plaintiff and the FTC its taxpayer identifying number (social
security number or employer identification number) which shall be used for purposes of

collecting and reporting on any delinquent amount arising out of Defendant’s relationship with
the government.
III. ACCURACY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff’s and the Commission’s agreement to, and
the Court’s approval of, this Order is expressly premised upon the truthfulness, accuracy, and
completeness of the document headed “Revenue Data from Columbia House Telemarketing
Campaigns from October 2003 through March 2004" (Document No. CHC-05283) (hereinafter
“Revenue Data”) provided by Defendant and its counsel to the Plaintiff. If, upon motion by the
Plaintiff, this Court finds that this Revenue Data contained any material misrepresentations or
omissions, then the Plaintiff may request that this Order be reopened for the purpose of requiring

additional civil penalties from Defendant for making such a misrepresentation or omission;
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provided, however, that in all other respects, this Order shall remain in full force and effect
unless otherwise ordered by this Court; and provided further, that proceedings instituted under
this Section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other civil or criminal remedies available by
law. Solely for the purposes of reopening or enforcing this Section, Defendant waives any right
to contest any of the allegations set forth in the complaint filed in this matter.
IV. RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry
of this Order, Defendant, and its successors and assigns, shall maintain and make available to the
Plaintiff or Commission, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of a written request, business
records demonstrating compliance with the terms and provisions of this Order.

V. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANT AND
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF RECEIPT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant, and its successors and assigns, shall
within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Order, provide a copy of this Order including
Appendix A to all of its owners, principals, members, officers, and directors, as well as
managers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys having decision-making authority with
respect to the subject matter of this Order; secure from each such person a signed statement
acknowledging receipt of a copy of this Order; and shall, within ten (10) days of complying with
this Section, file an affidavit with the Court and serve the Commission, by mailing a copy
thereof, to the Director, Federal Trade Commission, Midwest Region, 55 East Monroe Street,
Suite 1860, Chicago, Illinois 60603, setting forth the fact and manner of their compliance,

including the name and title of each person to whom a copy of the Order has been provided.
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VI. NOTIFICATION OF BUSINESS CHANGES
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant, and its successors and assigns, shall
notify the Director, Federal Trade Commission, Midwest Region, 55 East Monroe Street, Suite
1860, Chicago, Illinois 60603, at least thirty (30) days prior to any change in Defendant’s
business, including, but not limited to, merger, incorporation, dissolution, assignment, and sale,
which results in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of a
subsidiary or parent, or any other change, which may affect Defendant’s obligations under this
Order.
VII. FEES AND COSTS
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each party to this Order hereby agrees to bear its own
costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with this action.
VIII. SEVERABILITY
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the provisions of this Order are separate and

severable from one another. If any provision is stayed or determined to be invalid, the remaining

provisions shall remain in full force and effect.
IX. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for

purposes of construction, modification and enforcement of this Order.
X. COMPLETE SETTLEMENT

The parties, by their respective counsel, hereby consent to entry of the foregoing Order, which
shall constitute a final judgment and order in this matter. The parties further stipulate and agree that the
entry of the foregoing Order shall constitute a full, complete and final settlement of this action.
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FOR THE PLAINTIFF
PETER D. KEISLER, ...
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Division

U.S. Department of Justice

PATRICK FITZGERALD
United States Attorney

——

Yy . M\»
Assistant U.S. Attorney
219 South Dearborn Street, 5* Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60604
(312) 353-5300 [Voice]
(312) 353-2067 [Fax]

EUGENE M. THIROLF
Director
Office of Consumer Litigation

:/m%? jod i Lata
ELIZ&ZBETH STEIN

Trial Attorney

Office of Consumer Litigation
U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 386

Washington, D.C. 20044
(202) 307-0486 [Voice]

(202) 514-8742 [Fax]

FOR THE i;DiRNAL Tfﬁﬁ‘ COMMISSION:
C. STEVEN B
Direcipf, Midwest eg1

TODD M. Kossovs/
THERESA M. McGRE
Attorneys, Midwest Region
55 East Monroe, Suite 1860
Chicago, Illinois 60603
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FOR THE DEFENDANT

N

TERRY MACKO
Senior Vice President, New Member Marketing
The Gqlumbia House Company

[P \?QN—/
LEWTS ROSE, ESQ.
Collier Shannon Scott, PLLC
3050 K Street, N.-W., Suite 400
Washington, D.C. 2007

” July
SO ORDERED this / L/ day of J ] , 2005

J

VRZ

UNITED STATES DISTRIC¥ JUDGE
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REASONS FOR SETTLEMENT

This statement accompanies the final order executed by defendant The Columbia House
Company (“Columbia House™). The final order enjoins Columbia House from violating the
Telemarketing Sales Rule (“Rule”), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, including the National Do Not Call
Registry provisions, and it requires payment of a $300,000 civil penalty.

Pursuant to Section 5(m)(3) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. § 45(m)(3), the Commission hereby sets forth its reasons for settlement by entry of a
Stipulated Judgment and Order for Permanent Injunction (“final order”):

On the basis of the allegations contained in the complaint, the Commission believes that
the payment of $300,000 in civil penalties by Columbia House constitutes the appropriate
amount on which to base the settlement. The provisions enjoining defendant from failing to
comply with the Rule, including its various Do Not Call requirements, should assure defendant’s
future compliance with the law. With the entry of the final order, the time and expense of
litigation will be avoided.

For the foregoing reasons, the Commission believes that the settlement by entry of the
attached final order is justified and well within the public interest.
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Pk 310 -

~ PART31 O—TELEMARKETING. SALES
: RULE -

Sea.
310.1 Scope of regulations in this part.
310.2 Definitions. . -
310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or prac-
tices.
310.4 Abusive telemarketmg a.cts or prac-
tices.
310.5 Recordkeeping" requirements.
310.6 Exemptions.
310.7 Actions by states and private personas.
310.8 Fee for access to ‘‘do-notcall” reg-
310.9 Severability.
ATUTHORITY: 15 U.8.C. 6101-6108,

SOURCE: 68 FR 4669, Jan 29, 2003, unless
otherwise noted. t -

§310.1 Scope of regulations .in- this
part.

This part I1mplements the Tele-

marketing and Consumer Frand and

16 CFR Ch: I (1-1~04 Edition)

Abuse Prevention -Act, 15~-H.S: C 6101~
6108, as amended.

§310.2 Definitions.

(a) Acquirer means a business organi-
zation, financial institation, or an
agent -of a business organization or fi-
nancial institution that. has authority
from an organization that operates or
licenses a credit card system to author-
ize merchants te accept, transmit, or
process payment by credit
through the credit card system. for

money, goods or services, or anything

else of value.

(b) Atltorney General mea.ns the chief
legal officer of a state.

(¢) Billing information means any. data
that enables any person to access a
customer’s or donor’s account, such as
a credit card, checking, savings, share

or similar account, utility bill, mort-.

gage loan account, or debit card.
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Federal Trade. Commission -

"', (d). Caller identification service means a

" gervice that allows a telephome sub-
scriber to have the telephone number,

and, where available, name of the call-
ing party -transmitted contempora-
neously with the telephone call, and
displayed on a device.in or connected
to the subscriber’s telephone.

- (e) Cardholder means a person to
whem a credit card is issued or who is
authorized to use.a credit card on be-

 -half of or in addition to the person to
. whom the credit card is issued..
(f): Charitable contribution means any.

donation or gift of money or any other

. thing of value.

'(g) Commission means the Federal
Trade Commission. .

_(n) Credit means the riglit granted by
. a-creditor to a debtor to.defer payment
" of debt or to incur debt and defer its

payment. )
. (1) Oredit card means any card, plate,

.coupon book, or other credit device ex-
_ isting for .the ‘purpose of obtaining’

money, property, labor, or services on

-credit.
@) Credit card sales draft means any

record or evidence of a credit card

~ transaction.
(k) Credit card’ system  means any

‘method or procedure used to process
credit card transactions involving <cred-
it cards issued or lcensed by the oper-
ator of that system. ST

(1) Customer means any person who is
or may be required to pay for goods or
services offered through tele-
marketing. -

(m) Donor means any person solicited
to make a charitable contribution.

(n) Established business relationship
means a relationship between a seller
and a consumer based on:

(1) the consumer’s purchase, rental,
or lease of the seller’s goods or services
or a financial transaction between the

consumer and seller, within the eight-

geh (18) months immediately preceding
the date of a telemarketing call; or

(2) the consumer’s inquiry or applica-
tion regarding a product or service of-
fered: by the seller, within the three (3)
months immediately preceding the
date of a telemarketing call.

(o) Free-to-pay conversion means, in-

an offer or agreement to sell or provide
any. goods or services, a provision
under which a. customer .raceives a

- §310:2

" product or service for free for an mima.l '

period and will incur an obligation to
pay for the product. or service if he or
she does not take affirmative action to
cancel before the end of that period.
(p) Investment opporiunity- means any-
thing, tangible orintangible, that is of-
fered, offered for sale, sold, or traded
based wholly or in part on representa-

tions, either express or implied, about.

past, present, or future income, profit,
or appreciation. : o

(@) Material means Tikely to affact. p

person’s choice of, or conduct regard-.

ing, goods or services or a charitable
contribution. ‘

(r) Merchant means & person who is
authorized under a ‘written contract
with an acquirer to honor or accept

credit cards, or to tranamit or process’

for payment credit card payments, for
the purchase of goods or services or a
charitable contribution.

(s) Merchant .agreement means a Writ-

ten contract between a -merchant and
an acquirer 'to honor. or accept credit
cards, or to transmit or. process for
payment credit card payments,. for the
purchase of goods or services or a char-
itable contribution. :
(t) Negative option feaiure raeans,. in
an offer or agreement to sell or provide
any goods or services, a provision
under which the customer’s. silence.or

© failure to-take an affirmative action to

reject goods or services or to cancel the
agreement is interpreted by the seller
as acceptance of the offer.

(u) Outbound telephome call means. a’
" telephone call initiated by a tele-

marketer to induce the. purchase of
goods or services or to solicit a chari-
table contribution. -

(v). Person: means any individual,
group, unincorporated association, lim-
ited or general partnership; corpora-
tion, or other business entity.-

(w) Preacquired account information
means any information that enables a
seller or telemarketer to cause a
charge to be placed against a cus-
tomer’s or donor's account without ob-
taining the account number directly
from the customer or donor during the
telemarketing transaction pursuant to
which the account will be charged.

‘(x) Prize means anything offered, or
purportedly offered, and given, or pur-
portedly given, to a person by chance.

375

aYalalial -S4l ™49

nxal

e



’ §3]03

.Far purposes of this deﬁn:ition. chance
exists if a person is guaranteed to re-

o ceive an item and, at the time of the
the tele-

offer . or purported offer,
-marketer does not identify the specific
item that the person will receive.

- (¥) Prize promotion means: :

. (1) A sweepstakes or other game of
chance; or  *

(2) An oral or written express or im-
plie'd representation that a person has
won, has been selected to.receive, or

" may be eligible to receive a prlze or
purported prize.

© (2) Seller means any person who, in
connection with a telemarketing trans-
action, provides, offers to- provide, or
arranges. for others to- provide goods or

services to the customer In exchange

for consideration. .
(aa) State means any sta.te of the
. United States, the District of Colum-
- 'bia, Puerto Rico, the Northern Mariana
" Islands, and any territory or possession
of the United States. v
-(bb) Telemarketer means any . person
_ who, in connection with telemarketing,
"initiates or receives telephone calls to
or from a customer or donor. :
(cc) Telemarkeling means a plan, pro-
gram, or campaign which is conducted
to'induce the purchase of goads or serv-
ices or a charitable contribution, by
use of one or more telephones and
which involves more than one inter-

state telephone call. The term does not

include the solicitation of sales
through the mailing of a catalog
which: coptains a written description
or illustration of the goods or services
offered for sale; includes the business
address of the seller; includes multiple
pages of written material or illustra-
tions; and has been issued not less fre-
quently than once a year, when the
person making the solicitation does
not solicit customers by telephone but
only receives calls initiated by cus-
-tomers in response to the catalog and
during those calls takes orders only
without further solicitation. For pur-
poses of the previous sentence, the
term ‘“further solicitation does not
include providing the customer with
information about, or attempting to
sell, any other item included in the
same catalog which prompted the cus-
tomer’s call or in a substantially simi-
lar catalog.

- marketer. An

16 CFR Ch. 1 (1-1-04 Edlﬂon)
(ddy Upsellmg means solicltmg the

purchase of goods or services following

an initial transaction during 8 single

telephonse call. The upsell is a separate
telemarketing transaction, not a con-
tinuation of the initial transaction. An
“external upsell” ‘18 a  solicitation
made by or on behalf of a’ seller dif-
ferent from the seller in the initial
transaction, regardless of whether the
initial tramsaction and the subsequent
golicitation are made by the same tele-
‘“internal upsell” is a so-
licitation made by or on behalf of the
same seller a8 in the initial trans-
actlon; regardless of whether the ini-
tial transaction and subsequent solici-
tation are made by the same tele-
marketer. -

~ §310.3 Deceptive telemarketmg acts or

practices.

(a) Prohibited ~deceptive telemarketing
acts or practices. It is a deceptive tele-
marketing act or practice and a viola-
tion of this Rule for any seller or tele-
marketer to engage in the following
conduct:

(1) Before a customer pays?! for goods
or services offered, failing to. disclose
truthfully, in a.clear and conspicuous
manner, - the following material infor-

mation:

(1) The total costs to purchase, re-
celve, or use, and the quantity of, any
goods or services that are the subject
of the sales offer; 2 .

(i1) A1l material restrictions, limita-
tions, or conditions to purchase, re-
ceive, or use the goods or services that
are the subject of the sales.offer;

-(iii) If the seller has a policy of not
making refunds, cancellations, ex-
changes, or repurchases, a statement

informing the customer that this is the

LWhan a seller or telemarketer uses, or di-
rects a customer to use, & courier to trans-
port payment, the seller or teslemarketer
must inalke the disclosures required by
§3810.3(a)(1) before sending a courier to pick
up payment or authorization for paymaent, or
directing a customer to have a courier plck
up payment or authorization for payment.

3For offers of consumer credit products
subject to the Truth in Lending Act, 15
U.8.C. 1601 et seg., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
228, compliance with the disclosure require-
ments under the Truth in Lending Act and
Regulation 7 shall constitute compliance
with §310.3(a)(1)(1) of this Rule.
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séller"s policy; or, if the seller or tele-

" marketer makes a representation

about a refund, cancellation, exchange,
or repurchase policy, & statement of all

.material terms and conditions of-such

policy; S . ,
(iv) In any prize promotion, the odds

. of being able to receive the prize, and,

if the odds are not calculable in ad-
vance, the factors used in calculating
the odds; that.no purchase or payment
is required to win a prize or to partici-
pate.in a prize promotion and that any
purchase. or payment will not increase

- the person’s chances: of winning; - and

the no-purchase/no-payment method' of
participating .in-‘the prize promotion

. with either instructions on how to par-
ticipate or an address or local or toll-

free telephone mumber to which cus-

_tomers may.write or call for informa-
tion on how to participate;

(v) All material costs or conditions
to receive or redeem a prize that is the

g subject of the prize promotion;

(vl) In the sale of any goods or serv-
jces represented to protect,. insure, or
otherwise . limit a customer’s liability
in the event of unauthorized use of the

- customer’s credit card, the 1imits on a-
cardholder's liability for unauthorized

use of a credit card pursuant to 15
U.S.0. 1643; and _ . '
(vii) If the offer includes a negative
option feature, all material terms and
conditions of the negative option fea-
ture, including, but not limited to, the -

" fact that the customer’s account will

be charged unless the customer takes
an affirmative action to avoid the
charge(s), the: date(s) the charge(s) will
be submitted for payment, and the spe-
cific steps the customer must take to
avoid the charge(s)- .

(2) Misrepresenting, directly or by
implication, in. the sale of goods or

services any of the follo_wing material .

information:

(). The total costs to purchase, re-
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any
goods ar services that are the subject
of a sales offer;

" (ii) Any material restriction, limita-
tion, or condition to purchase, receive,
or use goods or services that are the
subject of a sales offer;

(iii) Any material aspect of the per-
formance, efficacy, nature, or central

.. - §3103
" -characteristics of goods or __serviqés'

that are the subject. of a sales offer;
(iv) Any material.aspect of ‘the na-

" ture. or terms- of the seller’s refund,
- cancellation, exchange, OT repurchase

policies;

" (v) Any material ‘aspect of ‘a prize -
- promotion including, but not limited

to, the odds of being able to recelve a
prize, the nature or value of a prize, or
that a purchase or payment is required
to win a prize or to participate in a
prize promotion; '

‘(vi) Any material aspect.of an invest- -

ment opportunity including, but not
limited to, risk, Hquidity, earnings po-
tential, or profitability; .

(vil) A seller’s or telemarketer’s af-

fillation with, or endorsement. or spon-

sorship by, any person or government -
. entity; :

" (viil) That any vcustomer nsedé -of-

.fered goods or services to provide pre~ -

tections a customer already has pursu-
ant to 16 U.8.C: 1643; or ‘
(ix) Any material aspect of a nega-

tive -option feature including, but not-

limited to, the fact that the customer’s
account will be charged unless the cus-
tomer takes an affirmative action to
avoid the charge(s), the date(s) the
charge(s) will be submitted for pay-
ment, and the specific steps the cus-
tommer must take to avold the
charge(s).

(3) Causing billing information to be -

submitted for payment, or collecting or
attempting to collect payment for
goods or services or'a charitable con-
tribution, directly or indirectly, with-
out the customer’s or donor’s express
verifiable authorization, except when
the method of payment used is a eredit
card subject to protections of the
Truth in Lending Act and Regulation
Z,3 or a debit card. subject to the pro-
tections of the Electronic Fund Trans-
fer Act and Regulation E.* Such au-
thorization shall be deemed verifiable
if any of the following means is em-
ployed: ’

aTruth in Lending Act, 15 U.8.C. 1601 et
seq., and Regulation 2, 12 CFR part 226.

aWlectronic Fund Transfer Aect, 15 U.s.C.-

1693 et seq., and Regulation E, 12 CFR part
206.
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1) 'Express written .authorization by

the customer or donor, which includes

the customer’s.or donor’ s signature;s
(ii) Bxpress oral authorization which

is audio-recorded amnd made available

o upon request to the customer or donor,

‘and the customer's or donor’s bank or
other billing entity, and which evi-

dences clearly both the customer's or.

donor’s. authorization of payment for
the goods or services or charitable con-
tribution that are the subject of the
tolemarketing transaction and the cus-
_-tomer’s or donor’s receipt. of all of the
following information: ‘

- .(A) The number of debits, charges, or
payments (if more thaz one); -

.(B) The date(s) the debit(s),
charge(s), or payment(s) wﬂl be sub—
~mitted for payment; . -

-(C) The amount(s) of the debit(s),.

charge(s), or payment(s);

. (D) The customer’s or donor’s names;
- (H) The customer’s or donor’s billing
_information, identified with sufficient
‘specificity such that the customer or
donor understands what account will
be used to collect payment for the
goods or services or charitable con-
tribution that are the subject of the
telemarketing transaction;

(F) A telephone number for customer

or donor inquiry that is answered dur-
. ing normal business hours; and
(@) The date of the customer's or do-
nor's oral authorization; or

(1il) Written confirmation of the
transaction, identified in a clear and
conspicuous manner. as such ‘on the
outside of the envelope, sent to the
customer or donor via first class mail
prior to the submission for payment of
the customer’s or donor's billing infor-
mation, and that ineludes all of the in-
formation " .contained in
§§310.3(2)(3)(1i)(A)-(G) and a.clear and
conspicuous statement of the proce-

- dures by which the customser or donor

can obtain a refund from the seller or
telemarketer or charitable organiza-
tion in the event the confirmation is
inaccurate; provided, however, that this
means of authorization shall not be

5For purposes of this Rule, the term *‘sig-
nature’ shall include an electronic or digital
form of signature, to the extent that such
form of signature is recogmnized as a valid sig-
pature under applicable federal law or state
contract law.
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deemed verifiable in instances mwhich

-goods or services are offered in a trans-

action Involving a free-to-pay conver-
sion and prea.cquired a.ccount mforma.-
tion.

@ Maklng a false or mislea.ding
statement to induce any person to pay
for goods or services or to mduce ‘a
charitable contribution..

(b) Assisting and facilitating. It is a de-
ceptive telemarketing act or practice:
and a violation of this Rule for a per-
son to provide substantial assistance or -

- support. to any seller or telemarketer

when that person knows or consciously
avoids knowing that the seller or tele-
marketer is engaged in any act or prac-
tice that violates §§310.3(a), (c) or (d),

-or §310.4 of this Rule.

(c) Credilt card laundering. Except as
expressly permitted by the applicable
credit card system, it is a deceptive
telemarketing act or practice and a
violation of this Rule for:

(1) A merchant to preésent to or de-
posit into, or cause another to present
to or deposit into, the credit card sys-
tem for payment, a credit card sales .
draft generated by a telemarketing
transaction that is not the result of a
telemarketing credit card transaction
between the cardholder and the mer-
chant;

) Any person to. employ, solicit or
otherwise cause a merchant, or an em-
ployee, representative, or agent of the
merchant, to present to or deposit into
the credit card system for payment, a
credit card sales draft generited by a
telemarketing transaction that is not
the result of a telemarketing credit
card transaction between the card-
holder and the merchant; or

(8) Any person to obtain access to the
credit card system through the use of a
business relationship or an affiliation
with a merchant, when such access is
not authorized by the merchant agree-
ment or the applicable credit card sys-
tem. .

(d) Prohidbited deceplive acts or prac-

“tices in the solicitation of charitable con-
-tributions. It is a fraudulent charitable

solicitation, a deceptive telemarketing
act or practice, and a violation of this
Rule for any telemarketer soliciting
charitable contributions to misrepre-
sent, directly or by implication, any of
the following material information:
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(1) The naturs, purpose, or zmssmn of

~ any entity on behalf of which a chari—
- table contnbution is being requested;.

.(2) That any charitable contribution

" is tax deductible in whole or in part;
(3) The purpose for which any chari-.

table contribution will be used;
(4) The percentage or a.mormtr of any

'cha.ritable contribution that will go to
" s charitable organization or- to- any

particular charitable program;
(5) Any material aspect- of a prize

promotion including, but not limited

to: the odds of being able to receive-a
prize; the nature or value of a prize; or

that a charitable contribution is re-
‘quired to win. a prize or to pa.rtmipa.te:

in a prize promotion' or
(6) A charitable organization’ s or

-telemarketer’'s affiliation with, or-en-.

dorsement or sponsorship by, any per-
son or government entity.: .

§310.4 Abusive telemarkéting acts or
practices.-

(a) Abusive conduct genemlly It is an
abusive telemarketing act or practice
and a violation of this Rule for any
seller or telemarketer to engage in the
following conduct:

(1) Threats, intimidation, or the use
of profane or obscene language;

(2) Requesting or receiving payment
of any fee or consideration for goods or
services represented to remove deroga-
tory information from, or improve, a
person's credit history, .credit record,
or credit rating until:

(i) The time frame in which the seller

" has represented .all of the goods or

services will be provided to that person
has expired; and

(ii) The seller has provided the person
with documentation in the form of a
consumer report from a consumer re-
porting agency demonstrating that the

" promised results have been achieved,

such report having been issned more
than six months after the results were
achieved. Nothing in this Rule should
be construed to affect the requirement
in the Fair Credit. Reporting Act, 15
U.8.C. 1631, that a consumer report
may only be obtained for a specified
permissible purpose;

(3) Requesting or receiving payment
of any fee or consgideration from a. per-
gson for goods or services represented to
recover or otherwise assist in the re-

" of credit when

'§310.4.

turn. of money or any other item of

value paid for by, or promised to, that’

person in a previous telemarketing

transaction,” until seven (7) business
-days after such money or other item is

delivered to that person. This provision
shall not apply to goods or services
provided to a person by a licensed a.t;—

‘torney;.

4) Requesting or recelvmg paymen‘h
of any fee or consideration in advance
of.obtaining a loan or other extension
the seller or: .tele-
marketer has guaranteed or - rep-
resented a high likelihood of success.in

-obtaining or arradging a loan or other

extension: of credit for & person;

" (5) Disclosing. or receiving,.for-con-

sideration, uwnemcrypted consumer ac-
count npumbers for use in tele-
marketing; provided, however, that this

paragraph shall not apply-to the disclo-

sure or receipt of a customer’s or do-
ner’s billing information to process a
payment for gpods or services or &
charitable contribution pursuant to a
transaction;

(6) Causing billing iniormat.ion to be
submitted for payment, directly or-in-
directly, without the express. 1n:t‘orme_c_1
consent of the customer or donor.-In
any telemarketing transaction, the
seller or telemarketer must obtain the

express informed consent of the. cus-’
tomer or donor to be charged for the

goods or services or charitable con-
tribution and to be charged using the
identified account. In "any tele-
marketing transaction involving
preacquired account information, the

- requirements in  paragraphs (a)}6)(i)

through (it) of this seetion must be met
to evidence express informed consent.

1) In any telemarketing transaction
involving preacquired account informa-
tion and a free-to-pay conversion fea-
ture, the seller or telemarketer must:

(A) obtain from the customer, at a
minimum, the last four (4) digits of the
account number to be charged;

(B) obtain from the customer his- or
her express agreement to be charged
for the goods or services and to be

charged using the aceount number pur- -

suant to paragraph (a)(6)(I)(A) of this
section; and,

(C) make and maintain an audio re-
cording of the entire telemarketing
transaction. '
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‘('ﬁ)i»m -an:}' other ‘tei'émarketing trans-
action involving preacquired account

" information not described in paragraph

. (aX6)() of this sectlon, the.seller or
telemarketer must: - .o
(A) at a minimum, identify the ac-

count to be charged with sufficient -

~ specificity for the customer or donor to
understand what account will be
i charged; and =~ - ’

.(B) obtain from the ecustomer or

“donor his or her express agreement to
be charged for the goods or services

and to be charged using the account

‘number identified pursmant to para-

- . graph (a)(B)(i1)(A) of this-section: or
- (T) Failing to-transmit or cause to be
“transmitted the telephone number,
and, when made available by the tele-
marketer's carrier, the name of the
“telemarketer, to-any caller identifica-

tlon service in use by a recipient of a-

telemarketing - call; provided that .it
shall not be a violation to substitute.
(for the name and phone number used
in, or billed for;, making the call) the
name of the seller or charitable organi-
zation on behalf of which a. tele-
marketing call is placed, and the sell-
‘er’s ‘or charitable ‘organization’s cus-
tomer or donor service telephone num-
ber, which is answered during regular
-business hours.

(b) Pattern of calls. (1) It is an abusive
telemarketing act or practice and a
violation of this Rule for a tele-
marketer to engage in, or for a seller
to cause a telemarketer to engage in,
the following conduct:

(i) Causing any telephone to ring, or
engaging any person in telephone con-
versation, repeatedly or- continuously
with intent to annoy, abuse, or harass
any person at the called number;

(i1) Denying or interfering in any
way, directly or indirectly, with a per-
son’s right to be placed on any registry
of names and/or telephone numbers of
persons who do not wish to receive out-
bound telephone calls established to
comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iii);

(ii) Initiating any outbound tele-
phone call to a person when:

(A) that person previously has stated
that he or she does not wish to receive
an outbound telephone call made by or
on behalf of the seller whose goods or
services are being offered or made on
behalf of the charitable organization

.16 CFR Ch: | (1~1-04 Ediifion)-
for which a charitable coht:ihuﬁioh s

being solicited; or . _ :
* (B) that person’s telephone number ig
on the “do-not-call’’ registry, main-

‘tained by the Commission, of persons.

who do- not wish to receive outbound

_telephone calls to induce the purchase
- of goods or services unless the seller
* (i) has obtained the 6Xpress agree-

ment, in ‘writing, of such person to
place calls to that person. Such written
agreement shall clearly evidence such
Derson’s authorization that calls made
by or on-behalf of a specific party may
be placed to that person, and shall in-

clude the telephone number ta which -

the calls may be placed and the signa-
ture 8 of that person; or . .
(ii) has an established business rela-

- tionship with such person, and that -’

berson has not stated that he or 8he
does not wish to receive outbound tele-
phone calls under Dparagraph
(b)YQ)(A)(A) of this section; or ’

(iv)- Abandoning any outbound tele-
phone call. An outbound telephone call
is ""abandoned’’ under this section if a
berson answers it and the telemarketer

. does not connect the call to a sales rep-

resentative within two (2) seconds of
the person’s completed greeting.

(2) It is an abusive telemarketing act
or practice and a violation of this Rule
for any person to sell; rent, lease, pur-
chase, or use any list established to
comply with §310.4(b)()(1ii)(A), or
maintained by the Commission pursu-
ant to §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), for any pur-
Dose except compliance with the provi-
sions of this' Rule or otherwise to pre-
vent telephone calls to telephone num-
bers on such lists. _

(3) ‘A seller or telemarketer will not
be liable for violating §310.4(b)(1)(1)
and (iii) if it can demonstrate that, as

- part of the seller’s or telemarketer's

routine business practice:

(i) It has established and imple-
mented written procedures to comply
with §310.4(b)(1)(11) and (ii1); -

(ii) It has trained its Dersonnel, and
any entity assisting in its compliance,

SFor purposes of this Rule, the term “‘sig-
nature” shall include an electronic or digital
form of signature, to the extent that sach
form of signaturs is recognized as a valid sig-
nature under applicable federal law or state
contract law. ’
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in the procedures established pursuant
to §310.4()A)AY - ‘

_ (iii) The seller, or & telemarketer or
another person acting. on behalf of the
geller or charitable organization, has
" naintained and recorded a list of tele-
" phone numbers: the seller or charitable
‘. organization may not contact, in com-

pliance with §310.4(b)(DELAY; -

" (iv) The seller or & telemarketer uses
a process to prevent telemarketing to
any telephone: number on any list es-
_tablished pursuant. to §§310.4(b)(3)(1i1)
or 310.4(bYD(ii)(B), employing a
version of the *do-not-call” registry
obtained from the Commission no more
" than three (3) months prior to the date
any call is made, and ‘maintains.
records documenting this process;

- (v) The seller.or a telemarketer or
another person acting on behalf of the
geller or charitable organization, mon-
itors and enforces compliance with-the
procedures established pursuant - to

§310.4(b)(3)(1); and

. (vi) Any subsequent call otherwise
violating §310.4(b)(1)(1) or (iii) is the
result of error. ‘

(4) A seller or telemarketer will not
be: liable for violating 310.4(b)(1)(iv) if:

(i) the seller or-telemarketer employs

% of no more than three (3) percent of all
% _ calls-answered-by-a person, measured
per day per calling campaign; ’
(i) the seller or telemarketer, for

2 each telemarketing call placed,. allows
the telephone to ring for at least fif-
teen (15) seconds or four (4) rings before
: disconnecting an unanswered call;

({ii) whenever a sales representative
i{s not available to speak with the per-
son answering the call within two. (2)
- seconds after the person’s completed
‘ greeting, the seller or telemarketer
promptly plays a recorded message
that states the name and telephone
number of the seller on whose bebalf
- the call was placed”; and .

£ (iv) the seller or telemarketer, in ac-
cordance with §310.5(b)-(d), retains
3 records establishing compliance with
P §310.4(b)(H)(1)-(1id).

‘.f 1This provision does not affect any seller’s

: or telemarketer’'s obligation to comply with

§ relevant state and federal laws, including
but not limited to the TCPA, 47 U.8.C. 227,
and 47 CFR part 64.1200.

i technology that ensures abandonment..

- §3104

(c) Calling time restrictions. ‘Without
the prior consent of a person, it is an
abusive telemarketing act or practice
-and a violation of this Rule for a tele- -
marketer to engage in outbound tele-
phone calls to & person’s residence at
any time other than between 8:00 a.m.
and 9:00 p.m. local time at: the. called
person’s lIocation. S

(d) Required oral disclosures in the sale

- of gbods or services. It 1s an abusive tele-
. marketing act or practice and .a viola-

tion of this Rule for a telemarketer:in -
‘an outbound telephone call or -internal
or external upsell to induce the. pur-
.chase of goods or services- to fail to-dis-
close .truthfully, promptly, and in a
clear and conspicuous manner to the
person receiving the-call, the following
information:- S

(1)'The identity of the seller;”

- (2) That the purpose of the call i3 to
sell goods or services; : :

(3) The nature of the goods or serv-
ices; and . R

(4) That no purchase or_ payment is
necessary to be able to win a prize or
participate in. a prize promotion.if a
prize promotion is offered and that any
purchase or payment will not: increase
_the person’s chances. of winning. This
“disclosurs must be. made before or in
conjunction with the description of the
prize to the person called. If requested—-
by that person, the telemarketer must
disclose the mno-purchase/no-payment
entry method for the prize promotion;
provided, however, that, in any internal
upsell for the sale of goods or services,
the seller or telemarketer must pro-
vide the disclosures listed in' this sec-
tion only to the extent that the infor-
mation in the upsell differs from the
disclosures provided in-the initial tele-
marketing transaction.

(e) Required oral disclosures in .chari-
table solicitations. It is an abusive tele-
marketing act or practice and a viola-
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer, in
an outbound telephone call to-induce a
charitable contribution, to fail to dis-
close truthfully, promptly, and in a
clear and conspicuous manner to the
person receiving the call, the following
information:

(1) The identity of the charitable or-
ganization. on behalf of which the re-
quest is being made; and ’
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@ Tha.t the purpose of the call is to
sohcit a charitable contribution. X

. §310.5 Recordkeeping requirements.
(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall

. keep, for a period of 24 months from

" the date the record is produced, the fol~-
" lowing records relating to its tele-

‘marketing activities: :
(1) All substantially different adver—
‘tising; brochures,  telemarketing

" seripts, and promotional materials;

- ".(2). The name and last known addreas

- of each prize recipient and the prize

-awarded - for prizes that are - rep-

-resented,. directly or by implication, to

"have a value of $25.00 or raore;

(3) The name-and last known address
of each customer, the goods or services
-purchased, the date such goods or serv-
ices were shipped or provided, and the
amount paid by the customer for the
goods or services;8

(4) The name, any ﬂ,ctltious. name
used, the last known home address and
. telephone number, and the job title(s)

for all current and former employees
directly involved in telephone sales or
solicitations; provided, however, that if
the seller or télemarketer permits fic-
titious names to be used by employees,

- each fictitious name must be traceable
‘to only one specific employee; and .

(8) All verifighla authorizations or
records of express informed consent or
express agreement required to be pro-

. vided or received under this Rule.

. (b) A seller or telemarketer may
keep the records required by §310.5(a)
in any form, and in the same manner,
format, or place as they keep such

. records in the ordinary course of busi-

ness. Fallure. to keep all records re-

quired by §310:5(a) shall be a violation
of this Rule.

{c) The seller and the telemarketer
calling on behalf of the seller may, by
written agreement, allocate responsi-
bility between themselves for the- rec-
ordkeeping required by this Section.
When a seller and telemarketer have
entered into such an agreement, the

8For offers of consumer credit products
subject to the Truth in TLending Act, 16
U.8.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
" 226, compliance with the recordkeeping re-
‘quirements under the Truth in Lending Act,
and Regulation Z, shall constitute compli—
ance with 5310 5(a)(3) of this Rule.

16 CFR Ch I ('l 1-04 Edihon} '_
: terms of that a.greement shall govern, - .

‘and the seller or telema.rketer as the

" case may.be, need not keep records
. that duplicate those of the other. If the
agreement is unelear as to who ' ‘moust

maintain any required record(s), or if

. no such -agreement exists, the seller

shall be responsible for complying with
§§310.5(a)(1)-(8) and - (5);,  the tale-

marketer shall be responsible for com- - '
. plying with §310. 5(9.)(4) T '_
(d) In the'event of any dissolntion or -

termination of the seller’s or tele-
marketeér’s business, the principal of
that seller or telemarketer shall main-
tain all records as required under this
Section. In the svent of any sale, as-
signment, or other change in ownership
of the seller's or telemarketer's busi-
ness, the successor business shall main-

tain ‘all- records required under .this

Section

§310.6 Exempﬁons.

(a.) Solicitations. to. induce cha.rita.ble.

contributions: via . outbound telephone
calls . are not
§310.4(b)(1)(11i)}(B) of this Rule.

(b) The following acts or practices
are exempt from this Rule:

(1) The sale of pay-per-call services
subject to the Commission’s Rule enti-
tled_*“Trade Regulation Rule Pursuant
to thé Telephone Disclosure and Dis-
pute Resolution Act of 1992, 16 CFR
Part 308, provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to the re-
quirements of’ §§310‘4(a)(1). @)™, (b),
and (c);

(2) The sale of fra.nc:hises subject to.

the Comimnission’s Rule entitled “Dis-
closure Requirements and Prohibitions
Concerning Franchising and Business
Opportunity Ventures,” (‘‘Franchise
Rule’) 16 CFR Part 436, provided, how-
ever, that this exemption does not
apply to the requirements of
§§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), and (c);

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale
of goods or services or charitable solic-
itation is not completed, and payment
or authorization of payment is not re-
quired, until after a face-to-face sales
or donation presentation by the seller
or charitable organization, provided,
however, that this exemption does not
apply to the requirements of
§§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b}, and (c);
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! pomer or donor that are not the result
of any solicitation by a seller, chari-
table organization, or telemarketer,
provided, however, that this exemption

upselling
calls; . . : ..
" (5) Telephone calls initiated by a cus-
tomer or donor in response to an adver-
tisement through any medium, other
than direct mail solicitation, provided,
however, that this exemption does not

inent relating to investment opportuni-
*  ties, business opportunities other than
“ " bpusiness arrangements covered by the
Franchise Rule, or advertisements in-

'§§310.3(a)(1)(v1) or 310.4(a)(2)~(4); or to

such telephone calls;

(6) Telephone calls initiated by a cus-
tomer or donor in response to a direct
mail solicitation, including solicita-
tions via.the U.S. Postal Service, fac-
gimile transmission, electronic mail,
and other similar methods of delivery

specific address(es). or person(s), thai
clearly, conspicuously, and truthfully
- discloses_all_material information list-

e e s sen ey e o
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goods or services offered in the direct
mail solicitation, and that contains no
material misrepresentation regarding
any item contained in §310.3(d) of. this
Rule for any requested charitable con-
tribution; provided, however, that this
2 exemption does not apply to. calls initi-
ated by a customer in response to a di-
rect mail solicitation relating to.prize
promotions, investment opportunities,
business opportunities other than busi-
pess arrangements covered by the
Franchise Rule, or goods.or services de-
scribed in §§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 310.4(a)(2)-
(4); or to any instances of upselling in-
cluded in such telephone ecalls; and

(7) Telephone calls between a tele-
marketer and any business; axcept
calls to induce the retail sale of non-
durable office or cleaning supplies; pro-
pided, however, that §310.4Cb)(L)(1i1)(B)
and §310.5 of this Rule shall not apply
to sellers or telemarketers of non-
durable office or cleaning supplies.

PN IR —

(4) Telephone calls initiated by a cus-

does. not apply .to any instances of -
included in such telephone-

apply to calls initiated by & customer
or donor in response to an advertise-.

volving goods or services described in .

any instances of upselling included in -

" in which a solicitation is directed to .

ed in §310.3(a)() of this Rule, for any .

' o - §3108
§310.7 ‘Acﬁoné by sfates and’ p'rivé.te o
- . ‘persoms. . Lo
(a) Any attorney general or other of- -

- flcer of a state authorized by the state

to bring an - action under the Tele-
marketing.-and Consumer Fraud and
Abuse-Prevention Act, and ‘any private
person who brings.an action under that
Act, shall serve written notice of s~
action on the Commission, if feasible,
prior to its initiating an action under

_this Rule. The notice shall be' sent. to

the Office of the-Director,.Bureau. of
Consumer ' Protection, Federal Trade
Commission, Washington, D.C. -20580,
and shall include a copy of the. state's.
or private person’s complaint and .any
other pleadings.to be filed with tlie
court. If prior notice is not feasible,
the state or private person shall serve
the Commission with.the required no-
tice immediately upon instituting its
action. C : i 4
_(b) Nothing contained in this Section

shall prohibit any attorney general or
other authorized state eofficial “from
proceeding in state court on the basis

_of an alleged violation of any civil or
.criminal statute of such state.

§310.8 Fee for access to the National

. Do Not Call Registry. .

(a) It is ‘a violation of this Rule. for
any seller to initiate,. or cause.any. .
telemarketer to initiate, an outbound
telephone call to any person whose
telephone number is within a given
area code unless such seller, either di-
rectly or through another person, first
has paid the annual. fee, required by
§310.8(c), for aceess to telephone num-
bers within that area code.that are in-
cluded in the National Do Not Call
Registry maintained by the Commis-
sion under §310.4(b)(1)(Ei)(B); provided,
however, that such payment is not nec-
essary if the seller imitiates, or causes
a telemarketer to initiate, calls solely
to persons pursuant ..to
§§ 310.4(b)(1)(1i1)(BY() or (i), and the
seller does not access the National Do
Not Call Registry for any other pur-
pose. ) . .
(b) It is a violation of this Rule for b
any telemarketer, on behalf of any sell-
er, to initiate an outbound telephone
call to any. person whose telephone

- pumber is within a given area code un-

less that seller, either directly or
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§310.9- L .
through another person, first has paid
the annual fee, required by §310.8(c),
for access to the telephone numbers

 within that area code that are included

in the National Do Not Call Registry;
provided, however, that such Payment
is not mecessary if ths seller initiates,
or causes a telemarketer to initiate,
calls . solely to persons. pursuant to

§§310.4b)(1)A)(BXH) or (if), and the

seller does not access the National Do
Not Call Reglstry_ for any other pur-
- (¢) The annual fee, which. must be
paid by any person prior to obtaining

access to the National Do Not Call

‘Registry, is $25 per area ¢ode of data
accessed, up to a maximum of $7.375;

provided, however, that there shall be " bers on the re glstry. If the person is ac.

- no charge for the first five area codes
of data accessed by any person, and
provided further, that there shall be no
charge to any person engaging in or
causing others to engage in outbound
telephone calls.to consumers and who
is accessing the National Do *Not Call
Registry without being required under
this Rule, 47 CFR 64.1200, or any other
federal law. Any person accessing the

" National De Not Call Registry may not

pParticipate in any ‘arrangement to.

share the cost of ‘accessing. the reg-
- istry—ineluding any arrangement with
any telemarketer or service provider to
divide the costs to access:the registry
among various clients of that tele-
marketer or.service provider.

(d) After a person, either directly or
through another person, pays the fees
set forth in §310.8(c), the person will be
provided a wunique account number
which will allow that person to access
the registry data for the selected area
codes at any time for twelve months
following the first day of the month in
which the person paid the fee (*‘the an-
nual period’). To obtain access to addi-
tional area codes of data during the
first six months of the annual period,

the person must first pay $25. for each-

additional area code of data not ini-
tially selected. To obtain access to ad-
ditional area codes of data during the
second six months of the annual period,
the person must first pay $15 for each

additional area code of data not ini- -

tially selected. The payment of the ad-
ditional fee will permit the person to

16 CRRCh.I (1-1-04 Edition)

accéss the é;dditi"ona.l,area codes of data,

for the remainder of the annual period:
- () Access to the National Do Not

Call Registry is limited to tele- °f

‘marketers, sellers, others engaged in or
causing others to-engage in telephone
calls to consumers, service providers

~ acting on behalf of such persons, ang
.any government agency that has law

enforcement authority. Prior to access-
ing the National Do Not Call Registry,
& person must: provide the identifying
Information required by the operator of

the registry -to collect the fee, and -

must. certify, under penalty of law,

that the person is accessirig the reg-.

1stry-solely to comply with the provi-
slons of this Rule or to otherwise pre-
vent telephone calls to-telephone num-

cessing the registry on behalf of sell-
ers, that person also must identify
each of the sellers on whose behalf it is
accessing the registry, must provide
each seller's unique account number

for access to the national registry, and

must certify, under penalty of law,
that the sellers will be. using the infor-
mation gathered from the registry
solely to comply with the provisions of
this Rule or otherwise to prevent tela-
phione calls to telephone numbers on

the registry. - .
[68 FR 45144, July 31, 2003]

§ 310;9 Severability.

‘The provisions of this Rule are sepa-
rate and severable from one another. If
any provision Is stayed or determined
to be invalid, it is the Commission’s in-

tention that the remaining provisions-

shall continue in effect.
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avertheless, the Commission
2y oves that, to the extent that this -
smendment has an economic effect on
mall business, the Commission has
opted an approach that minimizes the
smpact to ensure thatitisnat- | .
substantial, while fulfilling the' mandat
+Ethe Appropriations Act thatall:: -
‘businesses obtain data from the National
Do Not Call Registry on & monthly basis.

record, the Commission has
axtonded the interval at which "

- husinesses must access Registry data
and purge-their calling lists of numbers
conteined on the Reglstry to thirty-one -
{31) days, the maximum gllowsble” .

‘mandate. And, inTecognition cf the -
‘need for businesses, particulary small
businesses, to modify their procedures,
dnd systems to accommodate this .

" effactive date forthis amended Ruls
%, provision as January 1, 2005, allowing
:-more than nins months time for ...

. - DOCAssary preparations.

* 4. Description of the Projected - -
- Reporting, Recordkesping; and Other
- Compliance Requirements of the Final
Rule, Including an Estimate of the.
Classes of Small Entities That Will Be

Subject to the Requirement of Obtaining

Data From the Natjonal Do Not Call

" Registry Every Thirty (30) Days and the

" Type of Professional Skills That Will Bs
Necessary To Comply. :

As discussed i the NPRM,; this
amendment does not iinpose any new,
“or affect any existing, reporting, ‘
" disclosure, or specific recordkeeping
. requirements within the meaning of the-
. Paperwork Reduction Act.The . -~
- - Commission further posited in the

NPRM that it did not “belisve that the- .

modification requiring sellersand = -,
- telernarksters to obtain data from the
" National Registry at-a more frequent -
interval will create a significant burden
" on sellers or telemarketars that have -
already established systems to comply
~ with the requirement in the existing
‘. TSR that requires accessing the Registry
database-on a quarterly-basis.” But, the
Commission recognizsd that “[tlhere
will likely be additional costs*. * - *
. incurred to access the Registry every
* thirty days (effectively twelve [12) times
per year) versus the current requirement

telamarkating does not distinguish batween thoss
entities that conduct exémpt calling, such as survey
- calling, thosa that receive inbound calls, and those
that conduct outbound calling campaigns. ‘
Moraovar, sallers who act aa their own
. tslsmarkaters are not accounted for in the Census

data), et T

.As discussed sbove in detail, based on,
.which would: further increase costs’

‘nursuant to the Appropriations Act r
P pprop :C asiom

" amendment, the Commission has set the

" of every thres months (effacﬁx{éiy'four

{4) fimes per yaar).4*

.Many commenters.argued that the o

amanded Rule provision will be
burdensoms on businesses, particulaxly.
gmall businesses. NADA noted thiat -

. *dealers and other small bnisinesses can
-expect a corresponding increase in the

function, they may find it necessary to -
outsource the function to a vendor,”™ |
associated with the mors frequent scrub
requirement.+* However, as describad
below, in resiilgse to Question 5, the
taken stepsto

minimize the impact of the amendad
Rule provision on small businesses, to

" the extent possible while still ..

effectuating the mandate ofthe °
Appropriations Act. - o

5.-Steps the Agency Has Taken To  ~
Minimize Any Significant Economic ~ °
Impdct on Small Entities, Consistent -
‘With the Stated Objectives of the

- Appropriations Act, Including the
.Factual, Policy, and Legal Reasons For.
. Selecting the Alternative Finally =~

Adopted, and Why Each-of the
Significant Alternatives Was Rejected.

As noted in tha NPRM, the -7
Appropriations Act of 2004 providas the
Commission 1o discretion in the matter’
of whether to amend the TSR.* The

L Coinmission, however, included ih the -

NPRM a requast for factual information -

- "about the amount of time it will take for
". . “gallers and telemarketers, including -

small businesses, to modify their.
‘business procedures and systéms to be

provision.” Based.on the:recoid; the

- Commission has determinad fo set the

effective date for this amendment as "
January 1, 2005. This time frame will, as
noted above, pmvidebusinesSq's, ’

“1Basad on data abtained during tha TSR
amendment fnalized in 2003, the Commission .

- sstimated that “ths cost of accessing the Natfonal

Do Not Call Registry to purge-the numbars it
contains from & company's calling lst (saparate
from the fes paid to obtain the list] is around $100.
Givan this estimats, sallers and telemsrkaters -
seaking to comply with tha proposad rula
maodification would pay $1200 per year ($100 par
scrub x 12 scrubs per yesr) rathar thas $400 per -
year ($100 per acrub x 4 scrubs-per year).” -

42 NADA at-2 recommending a January 1, 2005
sifactive date). See also Ziskind at 1 {noting that tha
more frequent scrub interval will “'add an
additional boiden to REALTORS,” and cost “cast
us tima and money”); NRF at 2.{"for smallar
businssses, in particular, the extra hours they may
be forced tn spend sach ronth in ordec to prepare
to contact their customers is subtractsd from the
time they could spend 3arving those customers”}. -

especially small businesses,** adequate -
.time to modify theirgystams and ~ . .
procedures to comply, with the amerided
Evision. In addition, thé Commission
extended the intervel at which .
businesses must access Registry data -
and purge thair calling lists of numbers.
. contained on the Registry to thirty-one

) ‘Aol {31) days, the maximum allowsbls -
pemcnael ot ocoey 0 downlod o Appropiations At
_ small businesses may lack available - - .mThust,&;nfhﬂe'the Commission :
" personnel to perform this additional. considered more burdensome - . .-

" alternatives (i.e., choosing an interval of

“thirty (30), rather than thirty-6ne (31),
days, the Commissicn rejected those .-
alternatives, as discussed abovs, in favar.
of a reguldtory approach that was the -
‘Jeast burdensoms to all regulated . -

entitiss, including small entities, ifany. -

- IX Amended Rule . i
. m Accordingly, the Commisgion amends: *
_ title 16, Code of Federal Regulations, as -
PART 310—TELEMARKETING SALES
RULE. -
m1 The.authori:ly citation for part 310
.~ continues to read as follows: -~
. Authority: 15 U.S.C. 6101~6108. -+

& 2, Amend § 310.4 by revising
paragraph (B)(3){iv) to read as follows:
. §3104 Abuslve telemarketing acts or
practices. Co e
LI 2
h) & *' % ’ R
. {iv) The seller or a telemarketer uses
a process to prevent telemarketing to
any telephone number on any list i
established pursuant to § 310.4(b)(3){iii)
or 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), employinga
version of the “do-not-call” registry

ebla to comply with the amended - _~.' .obtained from the Commission no more ~

-than thirty-ons {31).days prior to the
" dats any call'is madsd, 4nd mdintains
" racords documenting this process;
e * * - i. £ .
By direction of.tha Comumission. .
‘Donald S. Clark,

‘- Secretary.

Not: This appendix will not appsar in the.
Code of Federal Regulations. ’

43The Commission notes that the TSR applies
only-to interstata telemarksting campaigns, and
thua, is likely to sxempt nnmarous small businass
entitias that only conduct their telemarketing
within & singla state. The FOC, which regulates.
intrastate calling, whils not mandsted by the .
Appropriations Act to modify fts talemarksting.
rules, {s considering a change to bring them in lins
withi tha TSR. Ses “FCC Sseks Commant on Rulss -
to Elfminate Spam From Mobils Phonas;

‘- . Commission Alsa Asks for Comments on Possibls

“Safs Harbor" for Tolemarkesting Calls to Mobils
Phones,’” Mar. 11, 2004 (contsining refsrence to the
FCC's impending NPRM on a thirty (30) day scrub
iotarval). . S
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ey
ired, it will be prompted to renew B. Statement of Objectives and Legal discussed in Soction V of the Revised
pe subscription at that time. Basis Fea N}’RM.“ _ .
1, Paperwork Reduction Act As explained above, the objective of sm?il :zg‘i?;ge entitites sub?::teltl;st.he
. o the Amended Final Fee Rule is to Amended Fae Rule will pay tha saine -
The proposed revised fee provision collect sufficient faes from entities that  foas to obtain access to the National Do
Ipes not create any new recordkeeping,  must access the National Do Not Call Not Call Registry i order to reconcile
gporting, or third-party disclosure Registry. The legal authority for this their calling lists with the phone
squirements. However, the - o is the 2004 Appropriations Act, the  yymbers maintained in the national
pmmission now has data based on the  Implementation Act, and the registry. As noted earlier, howaver,
eration of.tha'Naﬁonal Do Not (t::d}l Telemarketing Act. comphénca costs for small entities are
fﬂgiSﬁ'Y %tmm?:ct:z :;h:na C. Description of Small Entities to not anticipated to have a significant
/5,000 entities cass the SgISOY  yhich the Rule Will Appl impact on small entities, to the extent
pply y
ach year, The Commission's staff has the Comumission believes that
screased its estimate of the total The Small Business Administration  compliance costs for those entities will

japarwork burden accordingly, and has
iotified the Office of Management and
judgat ("OMB") of the resulting minor
shange in burden hours to the existing
Jearance, OMB Control No. 3084-0097.

/L Regulatory Flexibility Act

The atory Flexibility Act
*RFA"), 5 U.S.C. 601 et seq., requires
he agency to provide an Initial
togulatory Flexibility Anelysis
“[RFA™) with its proposed rule, and a
#nal Re Flexibility' Analysis -
“FRFA") with its final rule, unless the
igency certifies that the rule will not
1ava a significant economic impact on
\ substantial number of small entities.

\s explained in the Revised Fea NPRM

nd this Statement, the Commission
loes not expact that its Final Amended
ge Rule will have the threshold impact
o small entities. As discussed above,
his Amended Rule specifically charges
10 fee for access to data included in the
egistry from one to five area codes. As
iresult, the Commission anticipates .
hat many small businesses will be able
o access the national registry without
\aving to pay any annual fee. Thus, it
sunlikely that there willbe a
ignificant burden on small businesses
esulting from the adoption of the
rroposed revised fees. Nonetheless, the
‘ommission published an IRFA with
he Ravisad Fea NPRM, and is also
whblishing a FRFA with its Final
\mended Fea Rule below, in the
uterest of further explaining its
lsterminatiofi, even though the
lommission cantinues to believe that it
3not required to publish such analyses.

\. Reasons for Consideration of Agency
\ction :

The Amended Final Fee Rule has
esn considered and adopted pursuant
3 the requirements of the
nplementation Act and the 2004
ppropriations Act, which authorize
18 Commission to collect fees sufficient
yimplement and enforce the “do-not-
all” provisions of the Amended TSR.

has determined that *'telemarketing
bureaus” with $6 million or less in
annual receipts qualify as small
businesses.s2 Similar standards, i.e., $86
million or less in annual receipts, apply
for many retail businesses that may be
“sgllers” and subject to the revised fee
provisions set forth in this Amended
Final Rule. In addition, thera may be
othertypes of businesses, other than

. retafl establishments, that would be

“sallers” subject to this rule.

As described in Section IV, abovs, to
date more than 57,000 entities have
accessed five or fewer area codes of data
from the national registry at no charge.
While not all of these entities may
qualify as small businesses, and some
small businesses may be required to
purchase access to more than five area
codes of data, the Commission believes
that this is the best estimate of the
number of small entities thet will be
subjact to this Amended Final Rule. In
any event, as ax&lained elsawhare in
this Statement, the Commission believes
that, to the extent the Amended Final
Fee Rule has an economic impact on
small business, tha Commission has
adopted an approach that minimizas
that impact to ensure that it is not
substantial, while fulfilling the legal
mandate of the Implementation Act and
2004 Appropriations Act to ensure that
the telemarketing industry supports the
cost of the National Do Not Call
D. Projected Reporting, Recordkeeping
and Other Compliance Requirements

The information collection activities
at issue in this Amended Final Rule
consist principally of the requirament
that firms, regardless of size, that access
the national registry submit minimal
identifying and-payment information;
which is necessary for the agency to
collect the required fees. The cost
impact of that requirement and the labor
or professional expertise required for
compliance with that requirernent were

42 Sea 13 CFR 121.201,

be largely minimized by their ability to

obtain data for up to five area codes at

no charge.

E. Duplication With Other Federal Rules
None. .

F. Discussion of Significant Alternatives
Tha Commission discussed tha

proposed alternatives in Section III,
above.

List of Subjects in 16 CFR Part 310
Telemarketing, Trade practices.
VIL Final Rule

‘s Accordingly, for the reasons set forth .
above, the Commission hereby amends

“part 310 of title 18 of the Code of Federal
Regulations as follows: ’

‘PART 310—~TELEMARKETING SALES
RULE ‘

n 1. The anthority citation for part 31
continuss to read as follows: .

Authority: 15 U.S.C. 6101-6108.

= 2. Revise § 310.8(c) and (d) toread as
follows:

§310.8 Fee for access to the Natlonal Do
Not Cali Registry.
L] * - * L]

(c) The annual fes, which must be
paid by any person prior to obtaining
access to the National Do Not Call
Registry, is $40 per arca code of data
accessed, up to a maximum of §11,000;
provided, however, that there shall be
no charge for the first five area codss of
data accessed by any person, and -
provided further, that thers shall be'no
charge to any person engaging in or
causing others to engage in outbound
telaphone calls to consumers and who
is accessing the National Do Not Call
Registry without being required under
this Rule, 47 CFR 64.1200, or any other
federal law. Any person accessing the
National Do Not Call Registry-may not -

participate in any arrangement to share

the cost of accessing the registry,

43 Seg 69 FR at 23704.
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including any arrangement with any
telemarketer or service provider to
divide the costs to access thi registry
among various clients of that .
telemarketer or service provider.

{d) After a person, either directly or
through another person, pays the fees
set forth o § 310.8(c), the person will be
provided a unique acgount number
which will allow that person to eccess
the registry data for the selected area -
codes at any time for twelve months
following the first day of the month in
which the person paid the fee (“the
annual period”). To obtain access to
additional area codes of data during the
first six months of the annual period,
the person must first pay $40 for each
additional ares cods of data not initiall
selectad. T'o obtain access to addition
area codes of data during the second aix
months of tha annual period, the person

* must first pay $20 for each additional
area code of data ot initially selected.

The payment of the additional fee will

permit the person to access the
additional area codes of data far the
_ remainder of the annual period.

« *, * * *
By direction of the Commission.

Danald S. Clark,

Secretary.

Note: The following a;‘:fendix will not
appetr in the Code of Federal Regulstions.

Appendix—List of Acronyms for
Commenters te the TSR Revised Fee
Rule Proposal »

Commenter Acronym

American Insurance Association®.. | AIA

American Resort Development | ARDA
American Teleservices Associa- | ATA
fion. .
America’s Community Bankers .... | ACB
Bamard, Ted .c.cecicermmrmesossnreas ™
Calfornia Association of Realtors | CAR
Cendant Corporation ... .. | Cendant
Comenica MC. ...cuewinmerssiocsnanesns Comerica
Direct Marketing Assoclation, inc. | DMA
Fried, Doiigen DF .
Hedke, Aeasha
Heinemann, Mike
Hughes, Roberta .
Infocislon Management Corpora-
ton, Inc. -
Magazine Publishers of America | MPA
Marrou, Madanne ... § MM
Midwast Readers Service .......«.. | MRS
National Assoclation of Realtors .. | NAR
National Automobila Dealars As- | NADA
sociation. ' .
National Multi Housing Councli .... | NMHE
National Newspaper Assoclation | NNA
012 (ol o 0) 1 O— oPT
RELO RELO
Stonsbridge Life Insurance Com- | SLIG
pany.

Commenter
TCIM SOIVICES v eeeoreremeoemeeeresersn

Acronym
JCIM

[FR Doc. 04~17330 Filad 7-29-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6750-01-F

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION
20 CFR Part 408 ‘
[R;gulauans ‘No. 8]

RIN 0960-AF72

Special Bensfits for Certaln World War
il Veterans; Reporting Requirements,

- Suspension and Termination Events,

Overpayments and Underpayments,
Administrative Review Process, .
Clalmant Representation, and Federal
Administration of State Recognition
Paymaents; Comrections L.

AGENCY: Social Security Administration.
ACTION: Correcting amendments,

SUMMARY: The Sacial Securi
Administration published a document
in the Federal Register on: May 10, 2004
(69 FR 25950}, revising our rules dealing

. with claims for Special Vetarans

Benefits under title VIII of the Social

Security Act. That document incorrectly

designated the final four paragraphs in
§408.1003. This document corrects the
final-regulations by redesignating those
paragraphs. .
DATES: Effective on Juns 9, 2004.
FOR FUATHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Rabert J. Augustine; Social Insurance
Specialist, Office of Regulations, 100
tmeyer Building, Social Security
Administration, 6401 Security
Boulevard, Baltimore, MD 212356401,
{410) 965~0020, or TTY (410) 966~5609.
For information on eligibility or filing
for benefits, call our national toll-fres.
numbers, 1-800-772-1213 ac TTY 1- .
800-325-0778, or visit our Internat Web
site; Sacial Security Online, at http://
www.socialsecurity.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The final
rules that are the subject of this
correction set forth six new subparts in
part 408 (Special Benefits for Certain
World War I Veterans). The six naw
subparts dealt with the following topics:
the events you must report to us after
you apply for SVB, the circumstances
that will affect your SVB entitlement,
how we handle overpayments and
underpayments underthe SVB program, .
how the administrative review process
works, your right to appoint someone to
represent you in your cfea.l.‘mgs with us,
and administration agreements wa may
enter into with a State under which we

will pay supplemental recognition

payments to you on ths State’s behalf. 3

. On
Pub. ;‘ b
May 10, 2004, we incorrectly designated ;3

age 25963 of the document we
hed in the Federal Register of

the final four p

as paragraphs (e} th

List of Subjects in 20 CFR Part 408

Administrative practice and

procedure, Aged, Reporting and

I8C requirements, Social
_ security, Special veterans benefits,

Veterans.

® Accordingly, 20 CFR part 408 i

corrected by making the following

correcting amendment: .

phs in §408.1003

. PART 408—SPECIAL BENEFITS FOR

CERTAIN WORLD WAR Hl VETERANS

= 1. The authority citation for subpart] :

_continues to read as follows:

Authority: Secs. 702(a)(5) and 809 of the
Socia] Security Act (42 U.S.C. 802(a)(5) and
1008). ) s
§408.1003 [Amended]

'™ 2.In § 408.1003, redesignata the final
four paragraphs as paragraphs (g)
through (j). .

Martin Sussman, .

Regulations Officer, Social Security
Administration.

[FR Doc. 04-17332 Filed 7-20-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4191-02-P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Sureau of Indian Affalrs

25 CFR Part 170
Indlan Reservation Roads Program

AGENCY: Bureau of Indian Affairs,
Interior. .

ACTION: Notice of public information
and education meetings on Indian
Resarvation Roads Program final rule.

SUMMARY: Wa are announcing public
meetings to provide information and
education on ths contents of each
subpart of the final rule for the Indian
Reservation Roads Program. The final
rule is thae result of negotiated
rulemaking between tribal and Federal
represantatives under the
Transportation Equity Act for 21st
Century. The final rule eatablishes
policies and procedures governing the
Indian Reservation Roads Program and-
provides guidance for planning,
designing, constructing, and
maintaining transportation facilities. It
also expands transportation activities
available to tribes and tribal




